JO NT HOUSE & SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 11, 2003
1:39 P.M

TAPE HFC 03 - 16, Side A
TAPE HFC 03 - 16, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Harris called the Joint House & Senate Finance
Committee neeting to order at 1:39 P. M

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Harris, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Bill Stoltze
Representative Ji m Wit aker

Senat or Con Bunde
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Donny O son
Senator Ben Stevens
Senator Lyda G een
Senator Gary W/ ken

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

Senat or Al an Auster man
Senator Lyda G een

ALSO PRESENT

Representative David Cuttenberg; Representative Carl Morgan,;
Representative Ral ph Sanmuel s; Jeff Staser, Federal Co-Chair,
Denali Conmm ssion; Yuri Mrgan, Legislative Representative
Denali Comm ssion; Rachel Petro, State Co-Chair, Denali
Comm ssion, O fice of the Lieutenant Governor; Tessa Del ong,
G aduate Intern for the Denali Conmm ssion; Joe C adouhous,
Norton Sound Health Corporation; Steve Agloinga, Norton
Sound Health Corporation; Emly Hughes, Norton Sound Health
Cor por ati on; Hel en  Poot oogool uk, Norton Sound Health
Cor por at i on.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

House & Senate Fi nance 1 02/11/03 1:39 PM



There were no tel econference participants.

GENERAL SUBJECT(S) :

and

OVERVI EW
DENALI COWM SSI ON
The follow ng overview was taken in |l og note format. Tapes
handouts wll be on file wth the House Finance
Comm ttee through the 23rd Legislative Session, contact 465-
After the 23rd Legislative Session they wll be

2156.

avai l abl e through the Legislative Library at 465-3808.

LOG | SPEAKER DI SCUSSI ON
TAPE HFC 03 — 16, SIDE A
000 |Co-Chair Harris Convened t he Joint House and Senate
Finance Committee neeting at 1:40 P. M
He noted the handout provided by the
Denali Conm ssion. (Copy on File).
DENALI COWM SSI ON
006 |JEFF STASER, FEDERAL |Introduced Yuri Mrgan, Legislative
CO CHAI R, DENALI Representative for the Denali Conm ssion.
COW SSI ON
032 | YURI MORGAN, Stated that he had been assigned to the
LEQ SLATI VE Denali Conmm ssion in order to represent
REPRESENTATI VE the Legislature’s interests in the
DENALI COWM SSI ON busi ness and prograns of the Conm ssion.
He added that it was the intent of the
neeting to outline what the Denal
conmmi ssi on does. He added that he and
M. Staser would | eave a | arge bl ock of
time for questions and answers.
153 | M. Staser Descri bed how the Denali Comm ssion was
achi eving accountability.
227 | M. Staser I ntroduced key staff person, Rachel
Petro.
307 | RACHEL PETRO, STATE |Explained that her job was to act as a
CO CHAI R, DENALI resource for the State within the
COW SSI ON, OFFI CE Adm ni stration and that she woul d be
OF THE LT. GOVERNOR |working to nmake the Conmmi ssion nore of a
State program
354 | M. Staser Reiterated the role that Rachel plays for
the State of Alaska. He introduced Tessa
DeLong, Ketchi kan.
414 | TESSA DELONG Expl ai ned her role with the Conm ssion
GRADUATE I NTERN FOR |working in problematic areas and nost
THE DENALI specifically with the health care and
COW SSI ON econoni ¢ devel opnent .
445 | M. Staser Provi ded information on the Comm ssi on,

which is a federal/state partnership.

House & Senat e

Fi nance

2 02/11/03 1:39 PM




The Conmi ssion was created in 1999 as a
result of legislation drafted by Senator
Stevens in 1998. The | aw provided for
five statew de organizations to
participate as voting nenbers along with
the two co-chairs, one State and one
federal. He referenced the slide shown.
The Conmi ssion has been pursuing the
principle thenes of energy and heal th.

536

M. Staser

The Conm ssion has conpl eted or under
construction 50 health clinics. He noted
that there are principles which the
Comm ssion will be accountable for:

« Effective and efficient

e |Inplenment policy

607

M. Staser

Ref erenced the Denali Comm ssion’s
website. (Presentation & slides provided
to Commttee only). He noted that any
person in the State could access the web
site. He wal ked nenbers through on how
to use the site. Logging on to the site
and entering the ‘public reports’.

652

M. Staser

From t he dat abase, every project that the
Conmi ssion is involved with is indicated.
He suggested ‘clicking on the project
map referencing the project charts. M.
St aser explained how to zoominto map

ar eas.

805

M. Staser

Data is popul ated by the State database.
Each project is presented with the status
of the project is represented in the

dat abase.

1006

M. Staser

Denali Comm ssion has hel ped train many
people for jobs. He referenced the
"report by the Conmttee" icon indicated
on each site.

1109

M. Staser

Ref erenced the ‘Performance Indicators’.
The sane thing indicated to the federal
government is reported and available to
each and every citizen. He enphasized
that all this information is available to
everyone who can use a conputer. He
stressed that this is what
‘accountability’ 1ooks like.

1201

M. Staser

Poi nted out that partner agencies are
checking on the plans, which is the
future of the program

1229

St aser

Ref erenced the "project reports"” icon.

1254

St aser

Expl ai ned how to print the reports.

1347

SI5F

St aser

Mentioned that using the site nmakes
accessing any report easy.

House

& Senat e

Fi nance

3 02/11/03 1:39 PM




1405

Representati ve
Fost er

Not ed that Joe C adouhous fromthe Norton
Sound Heal th Corporation was present at
the neeting. M. d adouhous introduced

t he menbers of his agency.

1501

M. Staser

Expl ai ned that sonme of the projects were
‘sub-casts’ of the larger projects and
each was separately funded. He explained
that the programwas created as an Exce
sheet but it could be downl oaded as a
file.

1603

M. Staser

He denonstrated other features of the
‘“Program lcon’. The program update will
provide the nonthly infornation.

1656

M. Staser

The report indicates the one person
responsi bl e for everything in the energy
area. Al partner agencies are |isted
such as Al aska I ndustrial Devel opnent
Export Authority (Al DEA) and Al aska

Vill age Cooperative (AVC). He noted that
t hey have requested proposals with other
partners in that entity can help to
del i ver quicker and cheaper. In order to
gui de what currently happens at the
Denal i Conmi ssion, there are policy-

gui ding groups. He enphasized that the
projects are not prioritized.

1800

Representati ve
Stoltze

Asked about resources of the Conm ssion
going toward comunities with economc
di stress i ssues.

1844

M. Staser

Stated yes. The law indicates that the
word ‘rural’ should not be defined. It
is inmportant to | ook at the federal
rational for becom ng involved. Each
program has its own distress criteria.

He asked if it would nmake cost effective
sense for a primary health clinic. He
noted that there is a steering conmttee
for health concerns. That Commttee |ays
out the guidelines regarding clinics. He
enphasi zed that there are projects
underway in all the cities in Al aska.

1948

M. Staser

He noted that the Conm ssion is dealing
with the challenge of howto prioritize
t he next power |ine extension. He asked
what the criteria should be. Until that
criterion is established, the Conm ssion
will be ‘stunbling” in that area. The
Comm ssi on shoul d not be deci di ng where
to put the next power |ine extension,
that should be a State or regional plan.
The Comm ssion attenpts to do well in
what ever they do. The eligibility is
there and the Conmm ssion guides the

House & Senate Fi nance

4 02/11/03 1:39 PM




action taken. The five conm ssioners are
non- St ate, non-federal enpl oyees.

2041

St aser

Conti nued, Each of the staff, on the
program side is borrowed from an agency.
The Conmi ssion’s overhead rate is about
2% and 98% of the nobney goes into
projects. Wen a staffer arrives on the
team they each have individual capacity
that is unique to them He noted that M.
Morgan was the program nmanager for
everything that has to do with ‘access’.

2131

Mor gan

Noted that there is a question that the
Comm ssion often receives regarding

assi stance. The del egation in Washi ngt on
D.C. has asked that access and
transportation is sonmething that the
Legi sl ature can address. The

Comm ssion’s response is if that is
needed, then the State will do it. To
date, an allocation is in the basic

i nformation-gathering node. The goal is
to understand what opportunities exist
for the Conm ssion to participate in
access. Access neans |land, sea & air.

2248

Mor gan

D scussed that the Comm ssion has
identified the community needs and has
met with various agencies and
departnments. He added that they have
asked many peopl e what should is needed
in the State of Alaska. He noted that
there are four issues, which have
resul t ed.

e Authority

* Privatization
* Delivery

» Sustainability

2351

Mor gan

Not ed that Senator Lisa Miurkowski | ast
week created a bill authorizing the
Denali Transportation System That woul d
authorize a funding level in the bil
that Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities currently gets. He
advi sed that the Denali Comm ssion had
gone to many interested parties to
determ ne how they feel about the

| anguage of that bill and howit should
be changed or nodifi ed.

2444

Mor gan

Rem nded nenbers that the Denal
Commi ssion is a federal agency.

2525

s

Mor gan

He added that the final decisions are up
to the communities and the Conmi ssi on.

2538

Mor gan

Addr essed forthcom ng issues.

House & Senat e

Fi nance

5 02/11/03 1:39 PM




2550

Co-Chair Harris

I nqui red how the issues of sustainability
are detern ned.

2558

M. Morgan

Replied that when sonething is built, it
must be determ ned how nmuch it will cost
to build but also how nmuch it will cost
to operated and maintain. He asked how
to determ ne who woul d take care of the
structure and where that noney woul d cone
from The guidelines need to be adapted.

2636

Senat or Bunde

Questioned the relationship of M. Morgan
and whom he works for.

2665

M. Morgan

Expl ai ned he works for Legislative Audit,
Representative Sanuel s and that he was
pai d through the Legislature. He noted
that he works with the Denali Comm ssion
because the Legislature believes that the
Commi ssion ‘is a good idea’ .

2727

Senat or Bunde

Did not renmenber that position being
funded by Legi sl ative Budget and Audit
(LBA) Committee previously. He comrented
that M. Mdirgan was a ‘Liaison” and al so
wor ki ng for the Denali Conm ssion.

2750

M. Staser

Responded, referencing a slide indicating
the position currently held by M.

Morgan. He enphasi zed that the Denal
Comm ssi on needs input fromthe State in
order to undertake the needed projects.

2832

M. Staser

He noted that Creg Johnston was the

previ ous staff nmenber working for the
Comm ssion. There are additionally, nine
federal staff nmenbers | ocated throughout
the State. He noted that M. Mrgan
keeps tracks of all the work done by the
Comm ssion in the State. The pernmanent
staff positions are hired and fired

t hrough the federal Co-Chair.

2944

M. Staser

The program ‘stuff’ is not federal work.
If the State policy is to have Davi s-
Bacon wages required, then there will be
fewer clinics as there is a funding
ceiling, which includes cost and | abor
conbi ned.

3030

M. Staser

He enphasi zed that the role of the
Legi sl ature has been invaluable for the
Comm ssion to do the correct thing.

3044

Representati ve
Fost er

Not ed t hat when session began this year,
he requested an update of what the

Comm ssi on was doing and that M. Mbrgan
came to his office and outlined all the
Commi ssion’ s projects.

3113

M. Morgan

Added that his role could be defined and
that it is not static. He rem nded
menbers that he did work for them

House & Senate Fi nance

6 02/11/03 1:39 PM




3124

Senat or Bunde

Not ed that not only was he working as a
Legi sl ature Liaison but that he was
assigned al so to other projects.

3143

M. Morgan

Responded that his loyalty was work as
the Legislature Liaison.

3153

M. Staser

Noted that it was a ‘secondary’ duty that
provi des focus. He added that the
position brings together various State
interests. M. Mrgan is doing
essentially staff research in order to
determne State priorities.

3241

Representati ve
Hawker

Pointed out that M. Mrgan' s prinmary
role was to do whatever the Legislature
chooses himto do. Qherwise, he wll
address the larger activities of the
Denal i Comm ssion. He conceded that it
was a well-structured |ine of authority.

3338

M. Staser

Stated that the Denali Conm ssion wants
to be a | earning and responsi ve agency.
He referenced the perfornance indicators.

3410

M. Staser

Ref erenced the website and the nonthly
reports. Program updates, hit the
subscri be button and insert your enai
address and then every nonth you wll be
updat ed.

3455

M. Staser

Advi sed that there is so nmuch going on
Wi thin the Conm ssion. He stressed that
this is a unique partnership between the
federal and State governnent. He
acknow edged t he amount provided through
the non-profits. M. Staser noted that
t he Conm ssion cannot do the work al one.
The strength exists within the

col | aborative efforts of all entities

i nvol ved.

3607

M. Staser

Comment ed on the nunber of people that
have been to Al aska and support the work
of the Denali conm ssion.

3633

Co-Chair Harris

Asked about the rural road situation and
the Denali Conmi ssion’s access to
m neral s and energy projects.

3657

M. Staser

Stated that there is nothing that

prohi bits that from happening now if it
is consistent with the federal |aw that
provi des the funding.

3719

M. Staser

Added that the new | egislation currently
i ntroduced on the U S. House Floor to
fill gaps within the federal system

Some standards are only appropriate for
the areas that they are in and woul d not
be appropriate for rural Al aska. He
asked if there is something that needs to
be done that no one else can do. He

House & Senat e

Fi nance

7 02/11/03 1:39 PM




noted that they do not have a program yet
to address the fundanental needs in

Al aska. There are a | ot of conmon
interests and | ooking the Comm ssion is

| ooki ng for the common ground. There is
no indication that Congress will be
funded at the authorization |evel
proposed by the U S. Senate.

3850 [ M. Staser

He noted that they are currently basing
staff on the possibilities of the "what
if's".

3906 | Representative
Fost er

Not ed the gradual decrease in the State
general fund match nonies. He validated
the work provided by the Comm ssion over
the years. He stated that it was the
only thing that has provided "hope" for
rural Al aska. He asked the future of the
program

3945 [ M. Staser

The federal FYO04 budget has not yet been
rel eased. All those nunbers are
operating under |ast years proposed
budgets. Every single regional authority
t hroughout the US has been cut. The
budget that the President requested for
the Denali Conmission is $63 nillion
dollars. The present budget proposal has
been forwarded to Congress. He noted

t hat Senator Stevens has been held

host age over this proposal for nany
years. He reiterated that the
President’s budget was fair based on his
budget priorities.

4123 | M. Staser

Continued, if the U S. goes to war, we
cannot count on federal noney. The State
cannot count on federal funds and the
State needs to get into a sustainable
econony. |If there was a plan, the State
coul d execute it. He spoke to the public
infrastructure to create econonic
opportunities. It is inportant to drop
the cost of power to help the
comunities, and get the workforce

devel opnent i ssues under control.

4224 | Senator WI ken

Thought that that there is not a way to
have multi year funding to avoid the
appropriati on angst.

4243 | M. Staser

Replied that was correct. Currently, the
Comm ssi on does not have nulti year
funding. It has been requested.

4252 | Senator WI ken

Asked about the status of the T-21
aut hori zation for service transportation.

4306 | M. Staser That bill is in draft formin the House
of Representatives. It is the | argest
House & Senate Fi nance 8 02/11/03 1:39 PM




Commttee in the Congress. There are
many people that have to cone together to
make it work. There mnmust be agreenent
and acknow edged that the staff is
working with the draft of the bill.

4330

M. Morgan

Added that this is just beginning. The
State can only provide input at this
tinme.

4349

M. Staser

Interjected that the staff needs to get
all their conmments in by the end of
nont h.

4402

Senator W/ ken

Asked if that would continue to be at six
years, $400 + mllion dollars.

4416

M. Staser

Replied that the bill was for a six-year
aut horization. Wthin that bill, if the
noney is com ng fromthe H ghway Trust
Fund, it is inherent that the
appropriation will cone with the

aut hori zati on.

4444

Senat or W ken

Asked if there was anything that the
Legi slature could do to help with that
effort.

4455

M. Staser

Replied that there is a nodel for how
that works in other parts of the country.

4522

M. Staser

Added that in the absence of a plan, it
makes it nore difficult for the federal
del egati on.

4538

Senat or W ken

Suggest ed that was what the Legislature
shoul d be worki ng on.

4550

M. Morgan

Added that before there can be a plan
assenbl ed, everyone shoul d be ‘working
off the sane page’. He noted that they
are working wth Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities in
that regard. They are the | argest agency
dat abase of information. The chall enge
is to gather all lists from each page.

4634

Senat or W1 ken

Listed the four categories of focus:
e authority
e project prioritization
 delivery
e sustainability

TAPE HFC 03 - 16, Side B

4700

Senat or W ken

Commented that the presentation had been
wel | prepared.

4616

M. Staser

Poi nted out that the packet contained a
map of the United States with a map of
Al aska super inposed over the top of it
i ndicating the transportation risks.

4520

Co-Chair WIIlians

Mentioned the access system and how t hat
it could affect the Alaska ferry system

House & Senate Fi nance

9 02/11/03 1:39 PM




4452

M. Staser

Not ed that the Comm ssion does not use
the word ‘transportation’ but rather the
word ‘access’ to get every citizen access
to whatever citizen should have access
to. He noted that the Comm ssion depends
heavily on the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities and
the non-profit groups that represent

sonme of the Native communities to get the
issues on the table. The State of Al aska
al ready has several plans conpl et ed.

4335

Senat or Bunde

Asked about the Comm ssion’s funding
sunmary.

4242

M. Staser

Revi ewed the Conm ssion's funding
sumary. Base funding cones fromthe
federal government. There is an automatic
fundi ng source nanaged by the U. S. Coast
Guard fromthe Trans- Al aska Pipeline
Liability Fund. Di scussed the USDA Rural
Utilities Service funding and he added
that the Environnmental Protection Agency
(EPA) fundi ng was new.

4021

M. Staser

Observed that another chart had been
added denonstrating the matchi ng funds.
He enphasi zed a need to be fiscally
responsi bl e.

3933

Senat or Bunde

bserved that the total funding is a
little over $200 mllion dollars. He
rem nded nmenbers that future federa
dollars is not guaranteed. He was
concerned with unrealistic expectations
t hr oughout the State.

3822

M. Staser

Stated that the Comm ssion shares that
concern. He referenced the unfunded
federal nandates to create underground
fuel tank storage. He added that the
Denali Conm ssion was going to try to do
172 bul k fuel projects.

3718

Senat or Bunde

Questi oned what enforcenment and the
transferring of ownership neant.

3704

M. Staser

Expl ained that sonmetinme training is
needed to allow communities to get their
tanks up to standard. Sonetines
comunities are encouraged to band

toget her for econony of scale projects.
He questioned what the State would do to
drop the insurance cost to the facilities
so that the communities can afford to
operate them

3534

M. Staser

observed that the Conm ssion is currently
| ooki ng at what constitutes a sustainable
community.

3503

Senat or Hof f man

Asked what is being acconplished. The

House & Senat e

Fi nance

10 02/11/03 1:39 PM




goal is to allow people to be nore self
sufficient and responsi ble. The Denal
Comm ssion is allow ng people to do that.
The driving force is to sustain projects.
He pointed out that there has been a | ack
of enphasi s on mai nt enance.

3329

Representati ve
Fost er

Recal l ed that during the late 1980's,

| arge projects would occur in the rura
areas, where the contracts would be won
and operated by out-of-state entities

wi thout a local hire. He enphasized the
changes that had been made by the

Conmi ssion toward | ocal hire.

3214

M. Staser

Poi nted out that there is a bal ance
between financing and the results. Life
cycle projects are inportant. Research
and devel opnment are critical conponents.
He adm tted that the question should be
asked whether we are using our resources
to our greatest advantage.

3045

Senat or W1 ken

Requested information on the efforts to
address water and sewerage concerns.

3012

M. Staser

Observed that the Conm ssion does not
handl e village safe water. The
managenent team of the Village Safe Water
is doing a good job at identifying

| essons | earned over the past couple
years. However, the water sewage systens
are not built in concert with a
sustainability plan. Currently, there is
a inter agency collaboration resulting in
a steering commttee to determ ne
specific criteria for sustainability.

That committee is |lead by Ernesta Ballard
from Departnment of Environnental
Conservation and Bill Allen from USC
Rural Devel opnent .

2902

M. Staser

Acknow edged that the Conm ssion does
have concerns regarding the village safe
water, but that is not their program

2845

Senat or d son

Report on the radi o regardi ng the nunber
of projects undertaken by the Denal

Comm ssion. He nentioned the concerns
with the village of Shishmaref and their
need to nove that village.

2758

M. Staser

Replied that the situation in that
village is not unique. There has been an
assessnent to determ ne which communities
are at risk, what are the costs to
mtigate the risk and the cost of
relocation. He noted that they are
neeting wth the appropriate agencies

2720

M. Staser

Noted that they were working with Norton

House

& Senate Fi nance

11 02/11/03 1:39 PM




Sound to determ ne what mekes the best
sense. (Questions are being asked
regarding if a cormunity can be noved and
still nmeet the needs of what is
inmportant. He noted that it was

di scussed in January with the

commi ssioners and wll cone back in Apri
with a nore clarified resolution. Access
to health care is essential. He
mentioned that communities at risk for
bei ng noved woul d need to redesign their
health facilities.

2626

Senat or d son

Questioned if M. Staser was saying that
they had the ability to fund a tenporary
facility. He asked what would be told to
the workers at the health care facility.

2601

M. Staser

Replied that there are both State and
Federal programfunds. The State does
have an enmergency program They are nore
able to respond and perhaps there could
be an interimsolution.

2457

Senat or d son

Noted that M. Joe C adouhous, Norton
Sound Heal th Corporation could address
funding a tenporary facility.

2445

M. Staser

Acknow edged that there are options. The
bottomline will come in after their
April, 2003 neeti ng.

2410

Senat or d son

Appl auded the representatives fromthe
Norton Sound Heal th Corporation.

2328

M . d audous

[testinony i naudi bl e].

2318

M. Staser

Stated that was why the neeting had been
schedul ed i n None.

2314

Co-Chair WIIlians

Asked who manages the construction
proj ects.

2303

M. Staser

Replied that the Comm ssion partners with
vari ous agencies. Norton Sound is a
partner. He noted that they give the
feds the ability to opt out of any of

t hose partnerships.

2231

Senat or Bunde

Asked when the report woul d be avail abl e.

2215

M. Staser

Reported that by the schedul ed neeting in
April sonething woul d be available for
di stribution.

2152

M. Staser

Poi nted out that preparation and
distribution of the report was a part of
M. Morgan’s job.

2135

M. Staser

He added that M. Mrgan could provide a
briefing of the anticipated contents of
the report.

2108

Representati ve
Fost er

Commented on the "drying up" of the
general fund and how the situation has
caused grasping within the villages. He

House & Senat e

Fi nance

12 02/11/03 1:39 PM




stressed that the Denali Comm ssion was
keepi ng rural Al aska goi ng.

2086 | M. Staser

Appreci ated the support. He added that
t he Conm ssion was “just the neeting

pl ace”. He rem nded nenbers that the
wor k of the Comm ssion was a

col |l aborative effort.

2017 | Co-Chair

Harri s

Mentioned that accountability and
sustainability are inportant concepts for
Al aska at this tine. He acknow edged
that the needs continue to grow as the
budget decreases. There needs to be an
econonic availability to maintain any
proj ects undertaken. Sustainability
needs to be present. He voiced
appreciation for the role of the
Conmi ssi on.

1913 | ADJOURNMENT

House & Senat e

The neeting was adjourned at 2:57 P.M

Fi nance

13 02/11/03 1:39 PM




